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Disclaimer

While all care has been taken to ensure that information contained in the report is true and correct at the
time of publication, changes in circumstances after the time of printing may impact on the accuracy of its

information.

Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander readers should be aware that this document may contain images
and names of deceased persons.

The Victorian Aboriginal Health Service is a child safe organisation.
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Executive Report

Improved and upgraded systems and processes

The last year has been a ‘break-out’ year for VAHS with systems upgrading and improvement of our operational
processes. Not only has this been beneficial for VAHS operations (and the benefits that will roll out to the Community),
but much of this is in line with the VAHS Strategic plans and Accreditation (requirements where VAHS is regulated and
must comply with many practice and clinical standards overseen by mainly the Australian General Practice guidelines
and the National Safety and Quality Health Service Standards).

The VAHS Vision

The VAHS Vision guides and determines the organisation's approaches to generating and producing programs that
promote and enhance health outcomes for Aboriginal people and families. The vision provides VAHS with a plan and
mapping to inspiring VAHS to providing quality and effective community health services. We will do this by going through
a flexible approach that is innovative, and embraced by Community and sets a standard as a centre of excellence for
Aboriginal health internationally.

Systems and Back of House Upgrades

A lot of investment has gone into upgrading VAHS systems over the past 12-24 months. A lot of the back-of-house work
has gone unnoticed. For example, VAHS has transferred all of its software from the traditional hard-servers to
cloud-based servers and transition its Clinical Information Software from Communicare to MMEX as the new system
which was seen as having enhanced capabilities and therefore better able to meet broader organisational data needs of
VAHS.

The Oral Health Unit has installed an industry-proven specialised dental software program as well as a new software
program that will improve efficiencies in claiming Medicare funding for the onsite digital imaging service.

Capital Upgrades
During the 2018-2019 period, work was undertaken to redesign and reconstruction of the VAHS Fitzroy medical
reception. This work included upgrading a number of other clinical and consultation rooms at the Fitzroy site.

VAHS has been in discussion with the Wurundjeri Land Council looking at a concept plan and study for a VAHS satellite
clinic at a Glenroy site.

VAHS Metropolitan Service Delivery Strategy

In line with the Strategic Goal number 1 “Extend our reach and improve access to services for the community” and after a
great deal of planning, VAHS secured a building in the Epping Hub precinct and completing fit-out of the new Epping
satellite clinic in May 2019. The clinic opened in July 2019 and the official opening was held on the 18 November 2019.
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The Epping Satellite is a flagship service for VAHS and is the first of a number of satellite clinics outlined in the VAHS
Metropolitan Services Delivery Strategy. VAHS is finalising a feasibility study that looks at establishing a site in Melton.
Despite meeting and overcoming the many challenges, there have been some great innovations and additions to our
services throughout the year. In the Medical Unit we have:

. Established an additional visiting Cardiologist from St Vincent's Hospital

. Engaged a visiting Pharmacotherapy Specialist

. Negotiated the services of a visiting Ophthalmologist from the Eye and Ear Clinic, to complement the
current Eye and Ear Clinic

. Engaged the services of a visiting Optometry, Geriatrician, Dermatologist, and the continuation of a

STI/BBV program lead by a new Registered Nurse.

In the Community Programs VAHS is negotiating to become a Home are Package Service. This is an extension to our
Elders and disability services. It has recruited a new Podiatrist at 3 days per week. The Deadly Elders Circus continues
to be popular and recognised and it has developed a formal Memorandum of Understanding with Circus Oz.

Workforce
There are some challenges with recruiting and engaging people into certain professional roles and this has an effect right
across the health spectrum.

VAHS has recruited a new Pharmacy Assistant from its workforce where the person started at VAHS as a casual cleaner.
The person has successfully qualified for a scholarship that will support her to be trained as a pharmacy assistant.

2 Aboriginal Health Workers in the Medical team have completed their Certificate IV Aboriginal Health Worker training.
Partnerships

VAHS has focussed on establishing and consolidating relationships with other bodies as it can help to provide opportuni-
ties where none exists. Relationships and partnerships are built on strong foundations and it allows VAHS to work with
bodies whose business is outside of our core business.

Children in Out of Home Care

It is widely acknowledged that the needs of Aboriginal children in the child protection system is a concern for our commu-
nity. For example, vulnerable children in foster care or Out of Home Care need further support for their health and
well-being and this is recognised by the VAHS Board of Directors. VAHS is talking to the Department of Health and
Human Services (DHHS), the Aboriginal Commissioner for Children and Young People and the Victorian Aboriginal Child
Care Agency (VACCA) towards developing a state-wide model of care for these children.

VAHS has also provided a submission to contribute to a new Victorian strategy that focussed specifically on health care
for children in Out of Home Care. These partnerships are important for VAHS and it allows VAHS to partner with key
organisations and play role in the delivery of health services for children and join in the journey of developing health and
wellbeing responses to vulnerable children and their families.

VAHS will continue to look at either establishing or strengthening it relationships with other bodies including the Primary
Healthcare Networks (PHNS), Hospitals, specialist health services such as the College of Optometry, and Australian
Hearing. Accessing and receiving support through these arrangements and collaborations will provide increased access
to services and improve health benefits ensuring improved outcomes for our community.
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VAHS Constitution

VAHS has been considering a change in its Constitution and is seeking advice about options of governance under the
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Corporation Act. Many Aboriginal organisations throughout Victoria have changed
their Constitution and this is an issue that VAHS will be discussing with its members going forward.

Highlights

This has been a very industrious year for VAHS staff and the Board of Directors. It has been a long year for staff and
Directors alike, a trying and sometimes overwhelming year of new developments, new systems, new learning, reporting
and quality compliance, staff turnover, and challenges in recruiting.

VAHS has come out the other side better able to and better prepared for the many challenges ahead of us.
Many thanks to the VAHS Management and Staff, the support of our partners, and especially the Board of Directors. Your
involuntary work as a VAHS Board of Director and your commitment to volunteer your time and energy after-hours and on
weekends to attend meetings has helped VAHS to progress many of its goals and activities during the year.

| also wish to acknowledge and thank the many Members and Community Members who continue to use our services,
VAHS is very lucky to be surrounded and protected by this supportive environment and by the Community that we serve.

Gary Murray
Chairperson
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VAHS Board of Directors

Garry Murray — Chairperson

Gary who was born in Balranald, NSW in 1951 is a Multi-Clan descendant of the Wamba Wamba
(Vic/NSW Murray River), Dhudhuroa (Vic/NSW Murray River), Wiradjuri (NSW Bogan River),
Yorta Yorta (Vic/NSW Murray River), Baraparap (Vic/NSW Murray River), Dja Dja Wurrung
(Loddon/Avoca Rivers), Djupagalk (Richardson River) and Wergaia Nations (Wimmera River).
He is a father to twelve (12) children and grandfather to twenty-four (24) grandchildren.

He believes that activism, land, sport and education is intrinsic to good health and mind along with proper connection to
Country and culture. He has successfully passed Law subjects from The University of Melbourne in Torts and the
Process of Law, History and the Philosophy of Law, Criminal Law, Property Law, International Law, Equity Law,
Introduction to Archaeology, Koori and Non-Koori History-Colonial and Postcolonial Interchange, Introduction to
Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Cultures, Human Rights Law, Environmental and Planning Law 1, Evidence,
Environmental and Planning Law 2, Constitutional and Administrative Law, Health and Medical Law, Law and Indigenous
Societies.

Garry has over fifty-two (52) year's activism and experience in many aspects of the First Nations particularly in
community development, native title, cultural heritage, economic development and human rights.

Ronald Briggs = Deputy Chairperson

Ronald is passionate about Community and Aboriginal Health. He is actively involved in the
Community through health promotion for men, with a keen interest to help Community members
become involved in sport, encourage men to become healthy role models for their families and
Communities and to see Community healthy and grow old.

Over many years Ronald has been involved in various committees in the Health Sector
particularly around men'’s health and is aware of the health needs of the Community, currently employed as a Practitioner
at the Magistrates Court. Ronald’s passion is promoting the goodness of fathers in Community and the importance of
their relationship with children and family.

Leanne Brooke - Treasurer

A proud Gunditjimara women, Leanne has worked in the Melbourne Aboriginal Community for over
twenty-five (25) years. Leanne is currently the General Manager of The Long Walk, Chair of
Wandarra Aboriginal Corporation and volunteers with the Hume Aboriginal My Time Group, a
support group for community members who care for a child or young person with a disability.

Leanne is passionate about fighting racism and inequality, empowering our young people and
ensuring our Community Members with a disability have a voice. A strong advocate for Community control and
self-determination, Leanne believes in order for us to be a strong, health community we need to have control of our own
health needs at a local level.
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VAHS Board of Directors

Anthony (Tony) McCartney - Director

Tony was born in Balranald and his first home was a tent on the banks of the Murrumbidgee River.
Tony's heritage originates from the Wotjobaluk tribe in the western part of Victoria on his great
Grandfathers side and from his great Grandmothers side which is the Nari Nari tribe that comes
from Lake Mungo in New South Wales. A father to five sons and four daughters and has ten
grandchildren, Tony had left high school at a young age to come to Melbourne to pursue an
automotive career.

Tony has worked in a number of industries such as; transportation, automotive manufacturing servicing and repair, youth
services, institutional and community settings, drug and alcohol, employment recruitment, advocacy, housing, health,
higher education and currently working in the VET sector in Melbourne.Tony has held three senior management roles in
Aboriginal organisations in Victoria and has previously been the Chairperson of VACCHO and the national Chairperson of
NACCHO.Tony has advocated for his people at local, state, national and international forums and is committed to working
to support the Community for better outcomes. He holds a number of governance roles in Aboriginal Health, junior
football, Aboriginal Theatre Company and early learning. Tony is the currently President of Bubup Wilam Early Learning
Aboriginal Family and Children Services.

Andrew Gardiner — Director

Andrew has more than 30 years' experience working in the Indigenous sector in Victoria and ("‘ :‘;
Far North Queensland, including seven (7) years with the Office of Aboriginal Affairs Victoria and =
the past thirteen (13) years with Dandenong and District Aborigines Co-operative Limited. As a W vy
proud Wurundjeri Woiwurrung man, Andrew has a strong understanding of Aboriginal culture 4%}
and heritage as a traditional owner of Melbourne and a great belief in the principle of the Aboriginal \‘J
Community Controlled Health sector, its workforce and its outcomes for the community. .

Ross Morgan - Director

Ross a proud Yorta Yorta man who has lived and worked in Melbourne for the last 20 years. Originally from Shepparton
Ross is currently employed as a Case Manager for Ngarra Jarranounith Place with Dardi Munwurro. A current Board
Member of VAHS and is a members of the Yorta Yorta Nations Elders Committee. Ross is a tireless worker for Aboriginal
peoples.

Marie Sehgal — Director

A proud Yorta Yorta woman, Marie was born in Melbourne and has lived in rural Victoria and Canberra. Marie returned to
Melbourne in 2012 with her daughter to complete her studies in Bachelor and Masters in Social Work at La Trobe
University. Marie has worked in the family, youth and children’s sector for the last 6 years, 4 of these years working at
ACCOs. Volunteering over the last 5 years on a number of ACCO Boards including 2.5 years as a Chairperson, Marie is
passionate in her support of the Aboriginal Community in particular working with women and children.

Marika Jackomos - Director
Marika is a proud Yorta Yorta woman born and raised in Victoria, who comes from a family that is very active in the local
Aboriginal Community. Marika is a confident leader and has worked in the health and welfare sector for almost 20 years.
Marika loves her Community and is a strong advocate for culture being an integral way to healing and good health.
Currently employed as the Manager of Aboriginal Programs at Mercy Hospital for Women where she leads a team that
provides cultural support and advocacy to Aboriginal women and families.
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OUR VISION

Creating and inspiring healthy Aboriginal people and families through quality, effective community health services,
education and training.

VAHS will achieve this with a flexible approach that is innovative, embraced by Community and sets a standard as a
centre of excellence for Aboriginal health internationally.

OUR PURPOSE

To achieve the best possible health and social and emotional well-being outcomes for our people.

OUR PRINCIPLES

Our service, program design and delivery are guided by the principles of;
. Aboriginal Community Control
. Holistic health
. Well-being and healing

. Self-determination
. Cultural integrity
OUR VALUES
. Respectful and caring
. Accountable and responsible
. Honest and trustworthy
. Collaboration and inclusive
. Learning and sharing
. Strength in diversity
OUR STRATEGIC GOALS
1. Extend our reach and improve access
2. Build program and service excellence
3. Invest in our workforce — making sure our staff are skilled and supported
4, Ensure the future of VAHS is supported by first class systems
o. Shape VAHS as a professional, sustainable, well-led and governed organisation
6. Develop and foster partnership that add value to our service capacity
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VAHS Model of Care

The Victorian Aboriginal Health Service (VAHS) is the largest provider of holistic primary health care for Aboriginal and
Torres Strait Islander people residing in metropolitan Melbourne and across Victoria.

The VAHS service model of care provides for a comprehensive suite of programs and services including:

)

. Medical

J Oral health

. Allied health

. Specialist clinics

. Pharmacy

. Community programs

. Integrated Care Team — Care co-ordination &

. Adult mental health and social emotional wellbeing /

. Child and Adolescent (Koori Kids) social and emotional wellbeing :

. Alcohol and other drugs support services

. Rehabilitation support

. Health promotion and prevention

. Maternity |
. Early years

. Parenting

. Home and community care .

. Women's and Children’s health

. Men's health >

. Financial wellbeing and financial counselling support e
. Transport

.
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Service Data

Victorian Aboriginal Health Service

Service Data

Top 10 Suburbs in Melbourne
that active clients reside:
Reservoir
Preston
Thornbury
Marthcote

40% ® 0
of active clients aged 0 -4
have had a Health Assessment n *

(715) in the ast 12 months.

Craigieburn
Epping
Collingwood
Fitzroy

During the 2018-2019 period, VAHS has transitioned its Clinical Information Software (Patient Information System) from
Communicare to MMEx.

In last year’s Annual report, we focussed on the number of Health Check undertaken for total clients. In Communicare, an
active client was considered someone who had visited the service 3 times in the previous 2 years.

Due to the change in system and the approach to reporting against strategic goals, this year we have focussed on
reporting against the number of Health Assessments that have been undertaken during the 2018-2019 period which are
reflected in the National Key Performance Indicators (nKPI) report in line with what we report to the Commonwealth
Government which funds our primary health care activities. The difference is that the new reporting approach means that
in the 2018-2019 reporting period is that active clients are considered to be any individual client seen at VAHS within the
12 month reporting period.
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The following Annual Report outlines key program and activity highlights delivered by various program areas across
VAHS which address our organisational Strategic Goals as outlined in our Strategic Plan 2017-2022

STRATEGIC GOAL 1 - Extend our reach and improve access

In response to community demand, VAHS made considerable investment in the establishment of the Epping satellite
clinic during the 2018-2019 period. VAHS identified a suitable and accessible premises, and ensured the fit-out of the
clinic to required accreditation/clinical standards and the recruitment of the required workforce. The Epping clinic opened
its doors in July 2019 and is now operational and taking appointments.

VAHS was also successful in obtaining a grant to conduct a feasibility study into the establishment of a second satellite
clinic in the outer Western suburbs to address community need for more locally accessible, culturally respectful
community controlled primary health care services. Work continues on this project to develop approaches to progress
the establishment of a VAHS satellite clinic in the Western suburbs.

Other key areas of focus for the 2018/2019 financial year required VAHS investment to meet our strategic goals
including:

. Transfer of all VAHS software from hard servers to cloud based servers
. Rental and fit out of Epping Hub retail space to accommodate the VAHS Epping Satellite clinic
. New optometry equipment at Fitzroy VAHS

. Redesign and reconstruction of the Fitzroy medical reception area

. Upgrade of clinical rooms and consultation rooms at Fitzroy VAHS

. Commenced feasibility study for a VAHS satellite clinic in or around the Melton area

. Commenced development of a concept plan with Wurundjeri Land Council to support the development of

a VAHS satellite clinic at a Glenroy site.

Aboriginal Workforce Development

An Aboriginal Workforce Development Strategy was funded in 2017/2018 to identify organisational training and education
priorities and build workforce training and professional development opportunities to grow and support the Aboriginal
workforce at VAHS. During this time VAHS used the initiative to establish relationships with Kangan Institute to
commence the conduct of a skills audit. The project is being conducted in collaboration with Swinburne University for
accredited training. Swinburne will also assist VAHS to accessing and gaining traction with training providers to provide
identified education and training and enhance and expand the new program to support skills development of the
Aboriginal Workforce and the Community.

Grants and Compliance
A Grants and Compliance position was established in 2018/2019 to support organisational funding and program
compliance and reporting against service delivery outcomes and deliverables.

The position works across the organisation with program Managers and staff to ensure VAHS complies with contractual
obligations and delivers a high-quality service for the Aboriginal community. Effectively meeting targets/deadlines and
timely reporting can and will always be an argument to further develop, and enhance new programs based on delivery
and demand and service usage by our community.
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Clinical Director

The scope of the role of Clinical Director is broad. In terms of Extending our Service Reach, in 2018/2019 the position
primarily focussed on the following activities:

- Advocating to the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) for sustainable and long term
funding commitment to support the VAHS model of care including supporting the maintenance of a
multi-disciplinary team care approach for vulnerable Aboriginal children, including those in out of home
care

- Supporting the establishment of the VAHS Epping clinic, including recruitment of GP’s and setting up of
clinic processes and clinical systems

- Supporting the establishment of a new addictions medicine (pharmacotherapy) specialist clinic at VAHS

- Planning for a new visiting Respiratory specialist service at VAHS Fitzroy.

Medical Unit

The work of the Medical Unit during the 2018/2019 period has focussed on establishing an additional visiting Cardiologist
from St Vincent's Hospital. This clinic has been added to the existing visiting service at VAHS Fitzroy, along with an
Echocardiograph Technician. Clinics are now held fortnightly at the Fitzroy site.

A visiting Pharmacotherapy specialist commenced visiting VAHS Fitzroy every 2 months to meet community needs in this
area. After a period of planning, visiting Ophthalmology clinics from the Eye and Ear Hospital commenced in late 2018.
These clinics are run fortnightly and both adults and children are seen at this clinic.

Visiting Optometry, Geriatrician, Dermatology, and General Surgery clinics continue to operate at VAHS Fitzroy on a
regular basis.

VAHS recruited a new Registered Nurse to lead our longstanding VAHS STI/BBV program, and program activities in this
area have been re-established.

The VAHS Fitzroy Medical Unit also provided assistance to support the establishment of the VAHS Epping clinic.
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Community Programs

Allied Health Services

After a lengthy application process, VAHS gained approval as a provider of a Home Care Package Service in November
2019. This service has been named “Murrur Nangitt” (Caring for Elders) Home Care Packages, which is in the Woi
Wurrung language spoken by the Wurundjeri people. To date, progress in establishing the service has been slow due to
insufficient resources, however this will be prioritised in the current financial year.

VAHS gained access to the My Aged Care portal in July 2018 and referrals which supports access to allied health and
nursing services through this platform have increased considerably. The team at VAHS has assisted many clients to
register on My Aged Care over the past twelve months.

A new podiatrist commenced in August 2018 and is employed at three days a week. Prior to this, VAHS had a contract
with CoHealth who provided a podiatrist at one and a half days per week. This has resulted in significant savings for
VAHS and an increase in the number of clients that are being assisted.

The Diabetes Clinic continues to be a successful strategy allowing community to access a multi-disciplinary team to
ensure optimal care of diabetes. The Diabetes Club continues to run on a fortnightly basis and consistently attracts high
numbers of attendees who are committed to learning about managing their diabetes and their health.

The Community Outreach Nurse works closely with GP’s and commences Aboriginal Health Checks in client's homes
which are then completed by GP’s. The Community Outreach Nurse also administers flu shots for clients during home
visits if needed. Our nurse has developed strong relationships with Aged Care Assessment Teams and has advocated
strongly for clients to be prioritised for Home Care Packages. A number of VAHS clients have now been offered
Packages as a result.

Clinicians delivered a successful health information day to the Whittlesea Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Social
Support Group in May 2019. Information included: what is involved in an Aboriginal Health Check, the roles of the
Community Outreach Nurse, the Occupational Therapist and the Dietician.

The Deadly Elders Circus continues to be an innovative and successful program and VAHS now has a formal Memo of
Understanding with Circus Oz to enable us to work collaboratively.

VAHS celebrated and participated in Senior Citizens Week in October 2018 and organised a successful and memorable
High Tea at the Windsor Hotel. Over 50 elders and staff attended and the feedback was very positive. The event was fully
funded through a Victorian Senior Citizens Week grants from the Department of Health and Human Services and the City
of Yarra.
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Integrated Team Care (ITC)

A new Care Coordinator commenced in June 2019 who manages incoming referrals to the Integrated Team Care (ITC)
program. This position ensures that all ITC referrals have GP Management Plans and Team Care arrangements before
being accepted in the ITC Program.

There has been a significant increase in the number of referrals and the number of clients who have been assisted to
manage their chronic health conditions. In 2018-2019 financial year, the ITC team delivered 6009 episodes of care
including: care coordination, transport to specialist and other appointments, advocacy, information provision, referrals to
other services and case conferences. The ITC service has developed an excellent reputation and track record for being
instrumental in improving health outcomes for its clients. This has been a result of strong collaboration with the VAHS
allied health team, GP’s and specialists.
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Oral Health Unit

The Manger of the Oral Health Unit continues to meet with Dental Health Services Victoria (DHSV) to advise, participate
and assist in the new initiative to have every school age child receive dental treatment at their place of schooling. This
requires participation to co-design the new School Dental Program at DHSV with other leaders of community centres
from all over the state.

The pilot programme is underway now, with feedback meetings covering service delivery, equipment, staffing, timing,
vehicle fit outs, routes and the challenges of providing this new service in purpose built vehicles.

The Oral Health Unit is negotiating with key stakeholders, with the aim of having access to a van on a roster rotation to
go into schools that have a high number of Aboriginal children enrolled.

Given the high costs of setting up a complete dental practice and the mandatory accreditation issues, this approach is
seen as the best option for VAHS to capture and educate our young people about oral health and provide extended
service reach for those who are unable to bring their children in to see the Dentist at VAHS Fitzroy.

Family Counselling Services

In 2017/2018 the VAHS Family Counselling Service (FCS) was successful in its application to the Department of Health
and Human Services for a 2-year grant to develop an Model of Service to address and improve the social and emotional
wellbeing needs of Aboriginal Adults with moderate to severe mental health conditions (Demonstration Project). This
initiative was one of a number of priority initiatives stemming from Balit Murrup Aboriginal Social and Emotional Wellbeing
Plan.

The Demonstration Project model of care involved the establishment of a multi-disciplinary team and consortium
arrangements with three hospital partners including St Vincent's Hospital, the Northern Hospital and the Austin Hospital.
The model proposed intended to increase FCS clinical and social and emotional wellbeing staff numbers. It will also
review and improve partnership arrangements with the hospital's current referral pathways to and from acute and sub
acute settings back to VAHS and other community based social and emotional wellbeing services with a case
management model. This will be supported by a multi-disciplinary team to support clients in their social and emotional
wellbeing journey.

Prior to commencing the Demonstration Project, VAHS Family Counselling Service undertook a Clinical Governance
project to build organisational capacity and address clinical governance issues across the FCS program. To support this
work, VAHS engaged specialist consultants to conduct the Clinical Governance Project which included the development
of a FCS specific Clinical Governance Framework and a Gap Analysis to identify a number of systems and processes
that required attention and needed to be addressed. A number of activities are currently being implemented including the
expansion of the FCS workforce that included the appointment of a Clinical Co-ordinator position as well as clinical and
non-clinical roles. This work also informed the development of new FCS intake and assessment needs process and case
management model.

In addition to the Clinical Governance Project, the Family Counselling Service established a Clinical Co-ordinator position
to support FCS staff with clinical supervision and support as a way to enhance Workforce Wellbeing. This was also a
specific activity funded through the Aboriginal Workforce Development Project outlined above.
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Financial Wellbeing Program

The Financial Wellbeing Program delivers culturally informed services directed towards increasing the confidence of
individual Aboriginal people and families to effectively address financial issues and/or behaviours associated with
gambling harm. This is achieved through a range of programs and services specifically directed to increasing the skills,
knowledge and awareness of Aboriginal people and the impact of gambling. Key areas include:

. Partnerships and relationships with key organisations

. Collaboration with other organisations

. Clinical Education for Staff and the Community

. Building capacity of VAHS Staff and the community relating to address adverse gambling behaviours
. Delivery of Culturally Safe Therapeutic Counselling and Financial Counselling services

. Community education and awareness activities.

Bringing Them Home Program

The Bringing Them Home Worker organised another great Sorry Day Event to commemorate the Apology to members of
the Stolen Generations. Due to the 26.05.2019 anniversary date falling on a Sunday, a Sorry Day Morning Tea was held
at VAHS Preston site with Stolen Generation T-Shirts and other Stolen Generation memorabilia in the colour purple being
provided for those who attended. The morning tea was attended by the Mayor of Darebin along with Darebin Council
staff. The event also included speeches by members of the Stolen Generations, the Mayor of Darebin as well as VAHS
staff and others who wanted to pay their respects and talk about their experiences. The issue of reparations for members
of the Stolen Generations was also raised as an issue for VAHS to advocate for.

2019 Men’s Social and Emotional Wellbeing Camp

The Aboriginal & Torres Strait Islander Men's Health, Wellbeing and Cultural Camp was held on Gunditjmara country in
Warrnambool on 2nd — 5th April, 2019. The Camp was open to Aboriginal and Torres strait Islander men from the
Northern and Western suburbs of Melbourne. Approximately 30 men attended with the youngest aged 16. Approximately
ten (10) workers from; Melbourne Aboriginal Youth Sport and Recreation/Whitelion (MAYSAR), Victorian Aboriginal
Community Services Association Limited (VACSAL), Victorian Aboriginal Child Care Agency (VACCA), Cohealth,
Victorian Aboriginal Health Service (VAHS) and Neami (Wadamba Wilam staff) attended the camp.

The objective of the Camps is to support Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander Men and to promote health and wellbeing
initiatives. The Camp helps men to regain or strengthen cultural identity and it gives them an opportunity to see and learn
new cultural aspects.
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Koori Kids Program

In October, the program presented a single information session for staff, parents, and carers about ‘How to Manage Kids’
Strong Emotions’. Feedback indicated that all participants found this session to be an informative and constructive
experience. One of the clinicians worked up until earlier this year, and we look forward to her continuing to share her
experience and expertise with us in future information sessions.

The calendar for next year is currently in development, with Bringing up Great Teens scheduled for Term 1.

Living with Autism Program

The Living with Autism programme was held over an 8 week period. Due to the specific nature of this programme, the
participant numbers are small. However, attendees indicated that they were benefiting from the group. Madeleine Ward
from Fitzroy VAHS has given a presentation to the group about managing the food and dietary issues commonly seen
with autism.

Let’s Talk About Kids Program

In May and June, we held a six-week parenting group, Let's Talk About Kids — Parents Building Solutions, which was
facilitated by Parentzone and Anglicare. This programme has been popular in the past, and we had good numbers and
regular attendance again this year.

In anticipation of our next group, Bringing Up Great Kids for Kinship Carers (running from July 25th to August 29th), we
held a Kinship Carer information session, with presentations from Kinship Carers (at Grandparents Victoria), and the
Grandparents Adviser at Centrelink. We're grateful for the time and effort these presenters gave to make our carers
aware of the entitlements and supports available to them.

Youth Justice Program

The VAHS Youth Justice Program Clinician continues to attend Koori Youth Justice Preston weekly on Tuesday
afternoons and has a good collaborative relationship with them. The program has completed joint outreach visits with
Koori Youth Justice workers to better engage and assess clients. Joint outreach has been to homes, Parkville Youth
Detention Centre and Youth Court.

Our Youth Justice clinician also continues to support some of the Bert Williams Aboriginal Services workers and provide
coaching around talking to their clients. Those youth who express thoughts of self-harm or when they're worried about a
young person's mood and presentation, are able to access the clinician on mobile phone when needed.

Koori Kids Counselling Services

The Koori Kids team continues to provide Outreach Counselling sessions to Thornbury High School and our Mental
Health Outreach Team (MHOT) continues to provide child and family therapy in our Preston Office. To account for the
resignation of our Aboriginal Health Worker. Our Aboriginal Intake Worker regularly teams up with the MHOT to share
ideas and knowledge about supporting our families.
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Youth Psychosis Outreach Team (YOT)

The Youth Psychosis Youth Outreach team (YOT) has continued to provide outreach mental health assessments and
treatment to young people within our catchment area. We are receiving a steady flow of referrals that include primary and
secondary consultations; we have been able to provide a quick response to referrers and meeting the young person with
or without family; having a dedicated Aboriginal Health Worker (role) in the team has been vital in terms of the
engagement process by making the first contact. This has been essential for engaging a young person or the family.

The AHW role is often highlighted in secondary consult with mainstream professionals where there is a lack of
understanding about the cultural needs of youth and how this impacts on their social and emotional wellbeing. It has
worked well to have a strong advocate for the cultural needs of the young people; the Consultant Psychiatrist has been
well utilised providing outreach psychiatry to youth who are unwilling to attend clinic based services, meaning that youth
are able to access medication and medical review where they otherwise wouldn't.

We have attended the Headspace Craigieburn clinic regularly (Monday'’s fortnightly) and started seeing youth at this
clinic, this has been easier to access for Aboriginal youth who live around this area; The youth outreach team has
attended Kirrip House Melton regularly (Fridays fortnightly) and offered primary consults with families, facilitated referrals
to Orygen Youth Health for these families and offered cultural support for engagement with mainstream mental health
services.

Bunjilwarra
VAHS continues to co-manage the Bunjilwarra Youth and Adolescent Rehabilitation Service located in Hastings.
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Preventative Health Unit

VAHS Preventative Health Unit (PHU) has delivered the Deadly Choices Leadership school program to the following
schools;

. Sunbury High School

. Thornbury High School

. Lalor North Secondary College
. Epping High School

. Parade College

. Mernda Central P12 College.

The Team seeks to improve and build engagement with young Koori people targeted at school aged students through
education on primary health care, chronic diseases and Tobacco Smoking. This engagement is to promote and enhance
young people utilising primary health care services more regularly and to improve management of their personal and
family health and wellbeing.

The VAHS PHU supported and implemented Smoke-free policies and environments at 3 major Victorian Aboriginal
Sporting Carnivals held in Ballarat, Echuca and Shepparton. These activities were undertaken to promote and enhance
healthier environments for communities to enjoy and minimise the exposure of tobacco smoke to young and senior
people.

VAHS has established the Senior Games. The Seniors Games aim to increase engagement and social inclusion for our
senior members of our community. The Seniors play multiple game apparatuses such as Darts, Bowls, Quoits and
Basketball. Apart from the social interactions and connections, another benefit that this program provides improved
coordination skills for seniors.

The Epping Community Day was held in May 2019. This event coincided with the launch of the new satellite clinic VAHS
opened in the Epping. This event attracted over 350 people with 303 new registrations completed. The registrations
identify members of the Aboriginal Community in the Northern Melbourne Region that are either a current or non-current
client of VAHS. This action was also used to re-engage with VAHS clients who may not have utilised VAHS in the
previous 2 years or more while also promoting access for new clients for VAHS.

The VAHS Family Mixed Netball Carnival was held in February 2019. This is a new social and community event to create
more positive community engagement through sports. The event also promotes and strengthen family's structures and
community connectedness in the community. Each participant is required to complete an annual health check through
VAHS to be part of the carnival. There were 109 players (clients of VAHS) who participated in this carnival.

The VAHS PHU has a Community Programs Coordinator with a Communication Officer for Online and marketing
purposes.
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Women'’s and Children’s Unit

Work continues with different organisations to improve services for our community. VAHS has been working with the
Brotherhood of St Lawrence to assist clients to enrol in the NDIS and to access other services that VAHS doesn't already
provide. This includes the establishment of a partnership arrangement with the Eastern Primary Health Network
focussed on NDIS clients in the South Morang, Epping and Heidelberg areas.

Since the opening of the VAHS Epping clinic, referrals to VAHS Women'’s and Children’s Unit (WCU) are coming from
outer locations as far as Seymour. This has an impact on the current services and identifies the need for increased
service delivery in outer suburban and rural areas.

Ophthalmology Clinic at VAHS

VAHS has been in long term negotiations regarding a research project focussed on the appropriate treatment options of
otitis media in urban Aboriginal children. The Watch/Inflate project looks at improving management of ear health
problems in our children and is due to commence at VAHS in the next few months. The project comes with an Aboriginal
Health Worker position to build our organisational capacity to undertake and participate in the project.

VAHS has been working with government agencies promoting holistic services to vulnerable children including children in
out of home care and how we can expand and enhance our model of service on a longer term and ongoing basis.

The Unit has commenced Medicare claiming and billing in most programs independently.

In September 2018 VAHS and the Royal Children’s Hospital ran a Teddy Bear Hospital. Younger members of our
community were invited to this day. The idea was to allow children to feel safe when undergoing tests in a hospital. The
activity requires children to act as the doctors, students the assistants and their teddy bears are the patients. Each
participant is provided with a teddy bear who they took to visit departments in a make-shift hospital. We had
ambulances, x-ray, audiology, heart monitors, operating theatre, pathology and more.

Over 60 Children attended the day with approximately the same number of medical students. It would be interesting to
know who had the better time, the children, the students or the staff!
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STRATEGIC GOAL 2 - Build Program and Service Excellence

Key areas of focus during the 2018-2019 period focused on:

. Upgrading of service infrastructure to meet organisational needs such as IT and operating systems
. Partnership models with service providers and Aboriginal agencies

. Institute of Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH) mentoring for staff on Systems of Care

. Development of relationship strategies with Aboriginal and Mainstream agencies

. Re-establishment of the Quality and Clinical Governance Committee and structure.

Aboriginal Workforce Development
The key aims of the Aboriginal Workforce Development Initiative is to grow our Aboriginal Workforce and strengthen our
programs and service delivery. The aim of the project is focussed on:

J Growing the Aboriginal Family Violence, family services and broader Aboriginal health and human
services workforce

. Supporting Aboriginal Workforce development and health and wellbeing

. Continuing to build organisational capacity to support Aboriginal Workforce development and
employment outcomes

. Improving local employment outcomes by strengthening pathways between education providers and
employers

. Enhancing workforce planning approaches to better align workforces to service models, and

. Contributing to the cultural safety of health and human services.

The Aboriginal Workforce Development Initiative is a broad approach to build on programs and service excellent over
time and ensure it is culturally appropriate for our staff and community members.

Grants and Compliance

With the current demands from funding bodies, it is vital that VAHS is compliant in supplying them with the required and
quality reporting to support continuation of future funding. This is done through provision of evidence and a number of
different reporting measures including data (numbers), narrative (story), dashboards (snapshots), analytical/informational
reports based on facts as well as briefs to identify challenges experienced and program performance against
deliverables.

Program Funding and Compliance associated and contained in funding and service delivery contracts always involve an
element of continuous improvement and discussion to inform improved service delivery and system development.
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Clinical Director

A series of VAHS organisation-wide System of Care meetings were conducted during the 2018-2019 period to establish
and work on priority areas. Following this, system development activities have been continued through discussions at
Senior Management Team level, and other team and working group meetings.

VAHS continues to focus on prioritising preventive care for the Aboriginal community, including promotion of health
checks, cancer screening and other areas of preventive health and wellbeing.

Since establishing that, cervical screening rates for VAHS clients remain low. A working group was established to develop
and implement strategies that aim to improve screening rates and these included organising training for VAHS staff,
upskilling VAHS nurses and community promotion activities.

VAHS re-established its Research Subcommittee in September 2018. The Research Subcommittee has been inundated
with applications to participate in research projects. We continue to develop and establish VAHS specific research
protocols and assessment tools to assist us in decision making processes related to research.

To date VAHS has agreed to participate in several research projects that aim to build the evidence base to improve care
and outcomes for VAHS clients and the broader Aboriginal community. The topic areas of these projects include: the use
of retinal cameras in diabetes education, the WATCH/INFLATE trials focussed on improving the care of children with ear
health problems, health professional views about the prevention of Foetal Alcohol Spectrum Disorder in antenatal care.
We are also in discussions around research partnership arrangements and trying to source funding to support our
research capacity and establish our own research priorities.

Medical Unit

A new VAHS Fitzroy reception desk was designed and installed in May 2019 and has received positive feedback from
staff and community alike. VAHS clinical staff continue to promote and undertake health checks, GP management plans
and arrangements for team care, to ensure an organised and well co-ordinated approach to preventive health care and
chronic disease management for VAHS clients.

Community Programs

Allied Health clinicians continue to be accompanied by Aboriginal Health Workers during home visits to ensure that
culturally appropriate services are delivered. As part of the Diversity Plan that VAHS submitted to the Northern Metro
Sector Development Team of the Commonwealth Home Support Program, VAHS' partnership with the Aborigines
Advancement League (AAL) was selected as best practice. A video clip was produced where VAHS and the AAL
showcased our work together and this was presented at a Northern Metro Alliance network meeting.

Oral Health Unit

The Oral Health Unit acknowledges and understands the many social and cultural issues that frame the service needs of
our community. The staff of the Oral Health Unit work together to deliver treatment and to communicate effectively to our
patients. Dental Health Services Victoria‘s (DHSV) Policy Advisers acknowledge VAHS' Oral Health Unit's holistic model
of care delivered to our patients here as a leader in value-based healthcare, and delivering to patients the outcomes they
want and need. Dental Health Services Victoria have come to VAHS to hear and learn from the experiences of the VAHS
Oral Health Unit patient's and have learned how to improve Aboriginal patients’ pathways through the maze at DHSV.
This has improved the experience of Aboriginal people attending DHSV.
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Preventative Health Unit

VAHS has re-launched the "Boorai's and Smoke Don't Mix” Campaign which was first launched in 1994 in partnership
with Quit Victoria. This campaign was to educate parents, families and community to minimise exposure to Tobacco
Smoke by young people in the community. The campaign was successful as more families and parents are creating
better smoke-free environments to benefit younger people in the community (the children who participated in the
campaign in 1994 are themselves parents today). VAHS has taken on this campaign again to continue to empower
parents, families and community to create more and strengthen current smoke-free environments.

VAHS established a partnership with the Aborigines Advancement League (AAL) to co-host the Annual Christmas Tree
Event. This is the first time the two organisations co-hosted the event to showcase that community controlled
organisations can collaborate in partnership to deliver a positive community/family event for the community. Both VAHS
and the AAL contributed equal share of cost to conduct this event to reduce operational cost, preventing competition and
community bias. By all accounts the Christmas Tree Event was a great success with very positive community feedback.

Community Tobacco Cessation Stalls

VAHS has implemented Tobacco Cessation Stalls as a community awareness and engagement tool to increase
community member’s quit attempts and increase knowledge on tobacco cessation, support services and prevention. Part
of the community stalls are to break barriers around tobacco.

Women's and Children’s Unit
The WCU conducted several planning days and developed work plans for each program.

Strengthening the VAHS system of care is ongoing, as new programs are introduced, we continue to look at the referral
processes, intake, allocation of Aboriginal Health Workers and other health professionals working at VAHS who are
seeing and working with our community.

With new guidelines for programs including In Home Support and Maternal and Child Health, we are working with the
VAHS Health Information Team to use MMEX to provide an evidence base to inform the approach to our work.
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Family Counselling Service
Delivery of ‘Deadly Dads’ Parenting Program, Ravenhall Prison

VAHS successfully ran its second ‘Deadly Dads’ Parenting program for Aboriginal men at Ravenhall prison. The program
ran for 2.5 hours per week over 7 weeks, from: 7th August - 2nd October, 2018.

A total of 8 men participated in the program, from the ‘protection community’, with an average of 5 men participating in
each session. Raelene and Aboriginal Health Worker/Elder Uncle Daryl Smith, attended and facilitated each session at
the prison.

Evaluation feedback indicated the men gained a lot of new information and skills from the program and enjoyed the
sessions, as indicated by some of their comments below:

“I got a lot more out of this program than | thought | would. It opened some more doors for me”.

“I learnt how to talk with my kids, understand them more. | now think about just what to say
before | say it”.

“It’s a very much needed program, at all jails in Victoria. It left me wanting more”.

“After doing the program, | feel more relaxed, like feeling a sense of feeling good about myself. I’'m
looking forward to the next program”.

“Thank you both for bringing the program to Ravenhall. It should be taken all over Australia and
communities”.

Financial Wellbeing Program

From August 2018 VAHS staff participated in a series of meetings with VAHS senior management and the Victorian
Responsible Gambling Foundation (VRGF). The meetings were held to confirm the VAHS agreement to partner with the
VRGF to facilitate a funded Research project to examine VAHS experience of delivering Gambling Services since 2010
and community views in regard to Gambling Help services models. The Research Project was supported by the VAHS
Research Subcommittee and is scheduled to commence July 2019.
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STRATEGIC GOAL 3 - Invest in our Workforce, making sure our staff are
skilled and supported

After some challenges to recruit, we were successful in the appointment of an Aboriginal Workforce Development Officer
(AWDO) after obtaining an Aboriginal Workforce Development Grant which is aimed at building workforce capacity and
provide education and training pathways for our Aboriginal workforce.

VAHS made significant investment into updating IT infrastructure including hardware and software upgrades and to assist
staff capacity to provide enhanced delivery of services.

Aboriginal Workforce Development

During the course of 2018/2019 (prior to the appointment of the AWDO Officer), VAHS management ensured that
relationships were established with Kangan and Swinburne to discuss opportunities for Aboriginal Staff and the conduct
of a skills audit across VAHS to identify our skills gaps. The skills audit is due to commence in late 2019.

A small number of Traineeships offers are part of the Workforce Development Project. The nature of the traineeships that
will be offered will be informed by the skills audit and areas where we might be short of staff. The Traineeships will
provide a good pathway to employment and provide trainees with a strong starting point for a career in Aboriginal health.

Training and Professional Development

Training, education and professional development activities including short courses such as First Aide, CPR, OH&S,
Child Safety, Emergency Codes training and other essential training. The Training and Development Officer also
continues to explore other training and professional development opportunities requested/required by VAHS staff on an
as needs basis. The Training and Development Officer and the Workforce Development Officer will work to ensure a
co-ordinated approach to VAHS training and professional development to support the implementation of the Workforce
project.

Clinical Director
VAHS hosted four GP registrars on placements from MCCC, with Registrars being supported to see VAHS clients, and
participating in in-house training.

VAHS has re-established links with the University of Melbourne to host medical student placements, as well as
responding to requests from medical and other students from several universities across Australia.

The Institute for Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH) delivered a series of workshops across each of VAHS Units to train and
support staff in the use of MMEX, as well as about strengthening associated clinical systems.
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Medical Unit

A new Pharmacy Assistant commenced in late 2018, after having started work at VAHS as a casual cleaner. Under the
guidance of her supervisor and the VAHS pharmacists, the new pharmacy assistant qualified for a scholarship that is
supporting her to be trained as a pharmacy assistant.

Two Aboriginal Health Worker staff in the Medical Team are currently completing their Certificate IV Aboriginal Health
Worker Training.Retinal camera training has been delivered to VAHS Fitzroy staff, and the use of retinal cameras to
screen the eye health of VAHS clients with diabetes is being integrated into usual care.

In supporting mentoring approaches and staff capacity building and two way learning, each nurse or AHW in the clinic are
linked with a specialist. As they work alongside their chosen specialists, they are provided with a deeper understanding of
the chronic condition being managed as well as the ways to provide preventative health support to community members.
VAHS reception and administrative staff have been supported to undertake a series of online and face-to-face training
courses to build their skills. Staff from the Institute of Urban Indigenous Health (IUIH) have provided a series of upskilling
workshops to VAHS staff that include coverage of medical systems, and MMEXx, VAHS clinical information system.

VAHS recommenced hosting placements for GP registrars and medical students. By enabling registrars and students to
have experience and training in working in an Aboriginal community-controlled health service. these placements are key
to the development of VAHS' future GP workforce.

Efforts continue to support staff working in the medical clinic including opportunities for professional development. We
also continue to look at funding opportunities which will support the expansion of the current clinic workforce.

Community Programs

A VAHS Dietician and ITC Outreach Worker delivered a presentation on Deadly Elder’s Circus at the International
Healing the Spirit Conference in Sydney.

VAHS supported one of our Integrated Team Care Outreach Worker to attend the Lowitja Institute Conference in Darwin.
CarerLinks North delivered a training session to Community Programs staff on carer services.

Oral Health Unit

The Oral Health Unit have recruited a well-respected dentist whom our community trusts and values. The Senior Dentist
mentors less experienced dentists employed at VAHS to help grow their skillset, professionalism and understanding of
working in an Aboriginal people and community.

Education and training for Oral Health Unit staff in the NSQHS Standards 2nd Edition started early in 2019 to support our
efforts to be on the front foot to achieve accreditation.
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Preventative Health Unit

The VAHS Preventative Health team have been trained in best practice Tobacco Cessation. This training increased team
capacity to increase community engagement activities focussed on preventing and encouraging quitting Tobacco
Smoking.

Women’s and Children’s Unit

VAHS is aware that in some program areas we need to employ additional staff to assist with new programs, manage long
waiting lists, and provide Aboriginal Health Worker support to programs and practitioners. This needs to be in conjunction
with VAHS receiving adequate levels of funding for services from government, for things like enhanced Maternal Child
Health, Paediatricians, and Social Workers.

VAHS has undertaken regular supervision of staff and regular training.

Information sessions continue to be delivered regarding different topics such as Medicare. Future sessions need to
include NDIS, Child Safe policy, Child Protection reporting, etc.

Family Counselling Service

Koori Kids Parenting Program

The VAHS Parenting Program Co-ordinator attended facilitator training for the Parents Building Solutions parenting
programme, provided by Anglicare, Victoria. Parents Building Solutions (Let's Talk About Kids) is a flexible programme
which was piloted with a parent group at VAHS and was very well received.

Radhika Santhanam (clinical psychologist) provided a workshop at one of the ‘Managing Children with strong emotions’
sessions.

Team Development Workshop

The Koori Kids Team held an all-day workshop on February the 18th 2019. It was facilitated by David Mushin. After a
broad discussion of how team members see the nature of Koori Kids, there was discussion about how cultural issues
influence the way in which the team functions. This included consideration of factors affecting the functioning of a
multicultural and multidisciplinary team. The responses regarding the team were generally positive.

Koori Kids Cultural and Clinical Seminars

The fortnightly professional development sessions pairing Aboriginal workers with Non-Aboriginal workers together to
present on the cultural-clinical approaches continue to take place. It is agreed that these presentations strengthen the
practice of all workers by validating and developing cultural knowledge and practice alongside clinical frameworks.




40

VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE - ANNUAL REPORT 2018 - 2019

STRATEGIC GOAL 4 - Ensure the future of VAHS is supported by first
class systems

Clinical Director

VAHS period of transition to MMEx was supported by regular meetings of a user group with membership across the
organisation. Training and support was provided in-house, as well as by staff from the Institute for Urban Indigenous
Health (IUIH). Work is ongoing to customise the MMEXx system for use in a VAHS context, and to increasingly make
better use of MMEXx capabilities to support high quality clinical and preventive care and systems.

The Clinical Director continues to seek funds from DHHS to employ a VAHS Medicare Support officer. The position
continues to review and enhance VAHS policies and protocols around staff immunisation, responding to requests for
medical information, Code Grey, and other clinical systems.

The Clinical Director is reviewing the VAHS formulary to ensure that medicines being paid for are evidence-based, and
ensure that costs are not impacting negatively on VAHS clients or staff.

Medical Unit

In September 2018, VAHS changed clinical information systems from Communicare to MMEX, a web-based electronic
health record software. The first six months were challenging because staff were learning a new system but they also
had to negotiate issues with data transfer/migration. After the initial difficulties, and with the support of senior staff, the
VAHS Health Information Team, MMEXx and IUIH, VAHS clinical staff have adjusted to MMEXx and are making increasing
use of the system'’s capabilities to support clinical care, preventive care, recalls and other aspects of service delivery.
More reception and administration staff are required to further develop the back of house systems within the VAHS
Medical Unit; recruitment efforts for these roles is ongoing.

VAHS Fitzroy clinical services are Australian General Practice Accreditation Limited (AGPAL) accredited. Planning has
commenced for re-accreditation in 2020.

Oral Health Unit

The Oral Health Unit holds all patient records within an industry proven specialised dental software programme EXACT.
The program has had a substantial revision this year, allowing the Oral Health Unit more reporting options.

The Oral Health Unit have installed and learnt the new software programme CIRAD to more efficiently claim Medicare
funds from the onsite OPG digital Imaging service. This has resulted in a substantial increase in Medicare funding over
the last year.

Women's and Children’s Unit
Training continues for staff to perform tasks like scanning, Medicare billing and claiming. Data entry tools are being added
to the MMEX system.
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STRATEGIC GOAL 5 - Shape VAHS as a professional, sustainable, well led
and governed organisation
Clinical Director

Areas of priority to address sustainability include the following:
. Board Code of Conduct

. Board Governance training through Aboriginal Workforce Development Project

. Profile Board with skill and experience sets

. Establishment of a Senior Executive Strategic Group

J Increasing Medicare and PIP income

. NDIS Business case study

. Other Billings for services

. Strategic frameworks within Government sectors (self-determination model)

. Quality and compliance structure and framework for whole of organisation which takes into account 8
separate accreditation standards (national and program level standards)

. Implementation of Logic QC to support quality and document management

. Finance, Risk and Audit Committee (FRAC) structure. The FRAC is a Board Subcommittee which meets

monthly to discuss VAHS financial, risk and audit issues. It is chaired by the VAHS Treasurer who is
responsible for presenting financial reports to each Board meeting.

Grants and Compliance

Funding Bodies provide program guidelines and contractual requirements for VAHS to meet, in order to receive funding.
It is solely up to VAHS to ensure that the Quality and Compliance of the organisation is at an excellent and manageable
standard. Working across the organisation and closely with the finance Unit, the Grants and Compliance Officer position
plays a critical role in supporting VAHS Program Managers and staff to ensure program reporting and compliance and
identifies opportunities to support quality improvement where needed.

Clinical Director
The Clinical Director provides ongoing review and enhancement of systems around Medicare claiming and payment, and
expanding VAHS participation in the Practice Incentive Program, particularly around teaching.

The Clinical Director is also working with VAHS quality team to develop VAHS Clinical Governance Framework, including
holding a workshop for VAHS staff and management in May 2019 and drafting the Framework.
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Medical Unit

The VAHS Medical Unit is committed to an ongoing focus on making the most of the Medicare Benefits Schedule and the
Practice Incentives Program to contribute to financial sustainability of VAHS programs. This has included a focus on
developing improved systems for the processing of Medicare claims.

Community Programs

Contractual agreements have been made with a number of Home Care Providers to enable VAHS to invoice Home Care
Packages for allied health and nursing services provided. VAHS commenced invoicing Home Care Packages and NDIS
Packages for allied health and nursing services that have been provided.

All reporting requirements have been delivered within specified timelines.

Oral Health Unit

The VAHS Board and Executive Team will become conversant with the NSQHS Standards 2nd Edition, as mandated in
the 2nd Edition.

The Oral Health leadership model is to:

. mentor younger, inexperienced staff with successful role models within the workforce
. offer education, training, and improve literacy and numeracy encompassed within a good work ethic
. provide understanding on how to best to teach staff and how individual staff are most receptive to learn.

The Oral Health Unit Manager has achieved additional funding from Dental Health Services Victoria to enable the
purchase of two new state of the art bench top sterilisers for our Sterilisation Room and a new surgical unit to assist with
extractions.

The Oral Health Unit hold the NSQHS Accreditation that ensure quality and compliance are embedded into everyday
practice, treatment, protocols and guidelines. Monthly Audits and Reports build on compliance and quality in service
delivery.

Women's and Children’s Unit
VAHS senior staff will be approaching funding bodies to advocate program equity and fund the same rates as the
Department does to other service providers such as local council centres and hospitals.

Although VAHS provides a comprehensive and safe care for its clients, many funding streams come with no inclusion for
administration, vehicles/fuel or AHWs which are critical parts of our service model and approach.

Data cleansing for the Medicare billing has occurred and is ongoing as we ensure that payment is made for work
completed.

The VAHS midwife has obtained a provider number and is now billing and claiming Medicare. The Women's and
Children’s Unit is looking at Medicare claiming potential for other staff.

NDIS has the potential to increase revenue into VAHS after a period of time as more members of the community enrol for
and are accepted for an NDIS package.
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STRATEGIC GOAL 6 — Develop and foster partnerships that add value to
our service capacity

Key priorities have focussed on the establishment of a number of relationship strategies and partnerships arrangements.
Note some of these are separate from our core business and this needs to be maintained as they do provide service
opportunities where VAHS is not in a position to deliver.

The self-determination state funding model is an ongoing challenge for VAHS in meeting our strategic goals. To address
this we ae involved in a pilot project that is looking at funding reform for ACCO's across the state with 4 other pilot sites.
This is potentially a positive process to engage in to support efforts to secure increased and more sustainable and
aligned funding models going forward.

We continue to engage in high level networking with Health and Government sectors influencing policy and delivery of
services in alignment with our strategic directions.

Aboriginal Workforce Development

In order to maintain a successful and productive Aboriginal Workforce we have ensured that partnerships have been
developed early in the contract with external parties that will assist in the delivery of the project.

Grants and Compliance

Relationships/Partnerships are built on strong foundations to ensure we are communicating with our funding bodies to
continuously improve our service and meet the allocated targets for VAHS.

Clinical Director
Working with DHHS, VACCA, and Commissioner for Children and others towards developing a state-wide model of care
for vulnerable Aboriginal children.

Preparing a submission to contribute to a Victorian strategy about health care for children in out of home care.
Linking with VACCHO to work together around health information and evidence.

Working with the North West Melbourne Primary Health Care Network.

Working with the Eye and Ear Hospital, Australian College of Optometry, University of Melbourne and others to enhance
the integration and coordination of eye health services.
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Medical Unit
The VAHS Medical team continues to work with key partners including:
. Royal Eye and Ear Hospital - ear and eye health
. Australian College of Optometry — eye health
. Australian Hearing — audiometry
. St Vincent's Hospital - visiting cardiologist services
. MCCC — GP registrar placements
J University of Melbourne — medical student placements

Community Programs
Strategic partnerships have been formed and Memorandum of Understanding developed to formalise our collaboratively
working relationships with:

. Aborigines Advancement League
. Circus Oz
Oral Health Unit

The Oral Health Unit has a longstanding and strong strategic partnership with Dental Health Services Victoria to ensure
expedited care for our patients who need the specialised clinics and services offered by the Dental Hospital.

The partnership with Dame Phyllis Frost Centre continues to grow with more Aboriginal women accessing the Oral Health
Unit's services.

The VAHS Oral Health Unit has a seat at the Oral Health Leadership Group North West Region.

Preventative Health Unit
VAHS PHU have established partnership with the following organisations/groups;

. Deadly Choices

. Essendon Football Club

. The Long Walk

. Koori Education Support Officers (KESQO's)

. Darebin Council

. Whittlesea Council

. Quit Victoria

. Fitzroy Stars Football and Netball Club

. Victorian Aboriginal Community Service Association Limited.

. Koori Academy of Excellence

. Melbourne Stars Basketball Club

. Victorian NAIDOC Committee

. Aborigines Advancement League

. Lakes Entrance Aboriginal Health Association (Tackling Indigenous Smoking Team)
. Dandenong and District Aborigines Co-operative (Tackling Indigenous Smoking Team)
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Women’s and Children’s

VAHS worked with the Department of Health and Human Services and other partners including VACCA and the
Commissioner for Child Health to develop a state-wide model of care for vulnerable Aboriginal children. VAHS also
prepared a submission to contribute to a new Victorian strategy about health care for children in out of home care.
VAHS continues to advocate for adequate and sustainable levels of resourcing to enable high quality child health care to
be delivered to vulnerable Aboriginal children, including those in out of home care.

Family Counselling Service

Koori Kids and VACCA Working Together to improve Child Health

A network building session was coordinated between VACCA and Koori Kids/Family Counselling as a way of bringing the
two peak Aboriginal organisations together. The aim of the session was to commence an understanding into what the
respective organisations provide and offer the community. It was decided at the end of the session that given the
importance of the work VAHS and VACCA will be meeting quarterly. At the next quarterly meeting both organisations will
be presenting their individual programs.

Financial Wellbeing Program

Staff of the Financial Wellbeing Program continue to meet to foster meaningful relationships with mainstream providers to
assist with referral pathways which support positive access to other financial and social health provides to increase
access to services. For example a number of meetings have been attended with organisations providing financial aid,
accommodation and housing support, AOD support services, efc.

Through our partnership arrangement with Launch Housing, VAHS continues to have a Housing Worker located at VAHS
Preston 1 day per week. Our partnership with Uniting Care Re-gen supports the co-location of 2 AOD workers at VAHS
Preston on a weekly basis.
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

DIRECTORS'REPORT

Your directors present their report on the Victorian Aboriglnal Health Service Co-operative Limited (VAHS) for the
financial year ended 30 June 2019.

For this year, total comprehensive income increased by $1,561,601 (2018 operating profit: $48,897) which arises
from total comprehensive income of $1,911,900 arising from the revaluation of freehold land and buildings which
offset the deficit of $350,299 (2018 surplus: $48,897)

Revenue decreased by $531,853 (3%) as Dardl Munwurro project funding ceased (2018: $525,500)

Expenditure decreased by $132,557 (1%) for the same period

During this period, VAHS made considerable investment in the establishment of its first satellite clinic at Epping
and remodsling Fitzroy clinic reception. VAHS has been constantly challenged by the highly complex environment
in which It works, to maintain the level of change required to meet the community expectations paired with
efficlent systems and processes that enable to operate and deliver effectively within the desired setting. Current
deficit partly reflects this ongoing challenge and VAHS wilt continue to be challenged notably as funding becomes
more competitive each year. VAHS was also successful in obtaining a grant to conduct a feasibility study into the
establishment of a second satellite clinic in the Malton/Western suburbs, efforts continue on how to progress and
understanding the community expectations.

No dividends have been paid or recommended during the year. During the year no shares were issued.

No person has applied for leave of Court to bring proceedings on behalf of the Co-operative or intervene in any
proceedings to which the Co-operative is a party for the purpose of taking responsibility on behalf of the Co-
operative for all or any part of those proceedings. The Co-operative was not party to any such proceedings during
the year.

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the end of the financial year which significantly affected or may
significantly affect the operations of the Co-operative, the results of those operations, or the state of affairs of the
Co-operative in future financial years.

The Co-operative's operations are not regulated by any significant environmental regulation under a law of the
Commonweaith or of a State or Tenitory.

No indemnities have besn given or Insurance premlums paid, during or since the end of the financial year, for any
person who is or has been an officer or auditor of the Co-operative.

The names of the directors in office during or since the end of the year are: Ronald Briggs, Gary Murray, Leanne
Brooke, Tony McCartney, Ross Morgan, Marie Sehgal, Andrew Gardiner and Marika Jackomos.

The principal activity during the financial year was the provision of health services to Koori communities within the
State of Victoria. Funding to conduct these services was provided by grants received from government agencies.
The informatlon contained herein is presented on a consolidated basis covering all services provided under the
programs. There was no significant change in the nature of the activity during the year.

No significant changes in the state of affairs occurred during the financial year.




VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

During the year, the Board had also seen some changes to Its membershlp, Marie Sehgal Feb 2019 ceased
as director during the year and her service is acknowledged. Three Directors Ross Morgan, Andrew Gardiner
and Leanne Brooke were elected at the AGM. The Board appointed Marika Jackomos May 2019 to replace
Marie Sehgal.

Qualifications, experience and special responsibilities of Directors are as follows:

Ronald Briggs Ronald Is passionate about Community and Aborlginal Health. He Is actively
Deputy Chairperson involved in the Community through health promotion for men, with a keen
interest to help Community members become involved In sport, encourage men
to become healthy role models for their families and Communities and to see
Community healthy and grow old.

Over many years Ron has been involved In varlous committees in the Health
Sector particularly around men’s health and is aware of the health needs of the
Community, currently Ron is employed as a Practitioner at the Magistrates Court.

Ron'’s passlon Is promoting the goodness of fathers In Community and the
importance of their relatlonship with children and family.

Gary Murray Gary who was born in Balranald, NSW In 1951 Is a Muitl-Clan descendant of the

Chairperson Wamba Wamba (Vic/NSW Murray River), Dhudhuroa (Vic/NSW Murray River),
Wiradjuri (NSW Bogan River), Yorta Yorta {Vic/NSW Murray River), Baraparap
{Vic/NSW Murray River), Dja Dja Wurrung (Loddon/Avoca Rivers), Djupagalk
(Richardson River) and Wergaia Nations (Wimmera River). He Is a father to
twelve children and grandfather to twenty-four grandchildren.

He believes that activism, land, spori and education is Intrinsic to good health
and mind along with proper connection to Country and culture.

He has successfully passed Law subjects from The University of Melbourne In
Torts and the Process of Law, History and the Philosophy of Law, Criminal Law,
Property Law, International Law, Equity Law, Introduction to Archaeology, Koorl
and Non-Koorl History-Colonial and Postcolonlal Interchange, Introduction to
Ahoriginal and Torres Strait Islander Cultures, Human Rights Law, Environmental
and Planning Law 1, Evidence, Environmental and Planning Law 2, Constlitutional
and Administrative Law, Health and Medical Law, Law and Indigenous Socleties,

He has over fifty-two year’s actlvism and experlence in many aspects of the First
Nations particularly in community development, native title, cultural heritage,
economic development and human rights.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Leanne Brooke A proud Gunditjmara women, Leanne has worked in the Melbourne Aboriginal

Treasurer community for over 25 years. Leanne is currently the General Manager of The
Long Walk, Chair of Wandarra Aboriginal Corporation and volunteers with the
Hume Aboriginal My Time Group, a support group for community members who
care for a child or young person with a disability.

Leanne Is passionate about fighting racism and inequality, empowering our
young people and ensuring our community members with a disability have a
voice,

A strong advocate for community control and self-determination, Leanne
believes In order for us to be a strong, health community we need to have
control of our own health needs at a local level.

Tony McCartney Tony was born in Balranald and his first home was a tent on the banks of the

Director Murrumbidgee River. Tony’s heritage originates from the Wotjobaluk tribe in the
western part of Victoria on his great Grandfathers side and from his great
Grandmothers side which is the Nari Nari tribe that comes from Lake Mungo in
New South Wales.

A father to five sons and four daughters and has ten grandchildren, Tony had left
high schoo! at a young age to come to Melbourne to pursue an automotive
career.

Tony has worked in a number of industries such as; transportation, automotive
manufacturing servicing and repair, youth services, institutional and community
settings, drug and alcohol, employment recruitment, advocacy, housing, health,
higher education and currently working in the VET sector in Melbourne.

Tony has held three senior management roles in Aboriginal organisations in
Victoria and has previously been the Chairperson of VACCHO and the national
Chairperson of NACCHO.

Tony has advocated for his people at local, state, national and international
forums and is committed to working to support the Community for better
outcomes. He holds a number of governance roles in Aboriginal Health, junior
football, Aboriginal theatre company and early learning. Tony is the currently
President of Bubup Wilam Early Learning Aboriginal Family and Children Services.

Ross Morgan Ross a proud Yorta Yorta man who has lived and worked in Melbourne for the

Director last 20 years. Originally from Shepparton Ross is currently employed as a Case
Manager for Ngarra Jarranounith Place with Dardi Munwurro. A current Board
Member of VAHS and is a members of the Yorta Yorta Nations Elders Committee,
Ross Is a tireless worker for Aboriginal peoples.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (continued)

Marie Sehgal A proud Yorta Yorta woman, Marie was born in Melbourne and has lived in rural

Director Victorla and Canberra. Marie returned to Melbourne In 2012 with her daughter
to complete her studles In Bachelor and Masters in Soclal Work at La Trobe
Unlversity.

Marle has worked In the family, youth and chlldren’s sactor for the last 6 years, 4
of these years working at ACCOs. Volunteering over the last 5 years on a number
of ACCO Boards including 2.5 years as a Chairperson, Marie is passionate In her
support of the Aboriginal Community In particular working with women and

children.
Andrew Gardiner Andrew has more than 30 years’ experience working in the Indigenous sector in
Diractor Victorla and Far North Queensland, including seven (7) years with the Office of

Aboriginal Affairs Victorla and the past thirteen {13} years with Dandenong and
District Aborigines Co-operative Limited,

As a proud Wurundjerl Wolwurrung man, Andrew has a strong understanding of
Aboriginal culture and herltage as a traditlonal owner of Melbourne and a great
belief in the principle of the Aboriginal Community Controlled Health sector, its
waorkforce and its outcomes for the community.

Marika Jackomos Marika is a proud Yorta Yorta woman born and raised In Victorla, who comes
Director from a family that is very active In the local Aboriginal Community.

Marlka is a confident leader and has worked in the health and welfare sector for
almost 20 years. Marlka loves her Community and is a strong advocate for
culture being an integral way to heallng and good health.

Currently employed as the Manager of Aborlginal Programs at Mercy Hospital for
Women where she leads a team that provides cultural support and advocacy to
Aboriginal women and families.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)
During the financial year, 4 meetings of directors were held.

Attendances were: Directors’ meetings
Director Number eligible to attend | Number of meetings
attended
Gary Murray 4 4
Ronald Briggs 4 4
Leanne Brooke 4 4
Tony McCartney 4 4
Ross Morgan q 2
Andrew Gardiner 4 3
Marie Sehgal 3 3
Marika Jackamos - -

Auditor's Independence Declaration

A copy of the auditor's independence declaration as required under section 60-40 of the Australian Charities
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 is set out on page 6.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors:

Treasurer

Dated this 15th day of November, 2019
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AUDITOR’S INDEPENDENCE DECLARATION
TO THE DIRECTORS OF VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED

| declare that, to the best of my knowledge and belief, during the year ended 30 June 2019 there have
been:

(i no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements as set out in the Australian Charities
and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 in relation to the audit; and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional conduct in relation to the audit.

McLean Delmo Bentleys Audit Pty L

Martin Fensome Hawthorn
Partner 19 November 2019

4 A member of Bentleys, an association of independent accounting firms in Australia. The member firms of the Bentleys association are ) Accountants
/\KRESTON affiiated only and not in partnership. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. A member of » Auditors
Kreston International. A global network of independent accounting firms. 4 .
» Advisors
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INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 2019 2018

$ $

Revenus from operating activitles 2 18,871,437 19,507,680
Ravenue from non-operating activities 2 377,158 372,766
Employee benefits sxpense (15,208,003) (13,779,637)
Depreciation expense 4 (482,742)  (497,881)
Communications expanse (256,225)  (163,240)
Travel and accommodation expense (152,517)  (131,214)
Medlcal and dental supplies (480,288)  (440,828)
Repairsand maintenance (143,881)  (246,836)
Cleaning expense’ (167,105)  (243,177)
Protessional and consulting fees (851,753)  (728,265)
Computersoftware (264,860)  (453,619)
Rent & Rates (135,055) (46,058)
Computer Services (401,628)  (431,366)
Electricityusage (130,634) (111,461}
Program specific expenses (221,516) (1,822,199)
MotorVehicle Expenses (180,624)  (148,572)
Photocopy and stetlonery expenses (101,640)  (102,868)
Food Supplles (89,273)  (118,058)
Matarials and Stores (33,781) (21,361)
Otherexpensas (409,141)  (555,867)
Profit/{Loss) on sale of assats 12,861 8,854
Surplus/({Deficlt) for the year (350,288) 48,897

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 2019 2018

$ $

Surplus/(deficlt) (360,288) 48,997

Other comprehensive incoms — changes in asset revaluation 1,811,800 .
ressrves

Total comprehsnsive income 1,561,601 48,097

The accompanying notes form part of these financlal staternents.
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BTATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

Note 2019 2018
$ $

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents ~ spaclfic purposes 5 2,900,504 3,425,767
Cash and cash aquivalants — others 5 4,076,753 4,855,338
Trade and other receivables 6 842,876 1,172,012
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 7,920,136 9,463,117
NON CURRENT ASSETS
Propaerty, plant and equlpment 7 10,402,331 7,616,033
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 10,402,331 7,616,033
TOTAL ASSETS 18,322,487 17,088,150
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payablas 8 4,098,649 4,385,300
Provisions 9 1,344,536 1,380,861
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 5,443,185 5,785,261
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Provislons g 147,719 113,927
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 147,719 113,027
TOTAL LIABILITIES 5,590,904 5,809,188
NET ASSETS 12,731,563 11,169,962
EQUITY
Contributed equity ) 531 531
Reservas 5,544,343 3,632,443
Retained surplus 7,186,689 7,538,988
TOTAL EQUITY 12,731,683 11,168,662

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Balance as at 30 June 2017
Additional equity contibutad
Revalualion of frashold Iand and
buildings

Surplus/(deficit) forthe ysar
Balance as at 30 June 2018
Additional equity contributed
Revaluation of freehold land and
buildings

Surplus/{deficit) for the year
Balance as at 30 .June 2019

ABN 51 825 578 859

Contributed Bullglng Projact RCapltaI F;atal;md Total
Equity oserves esorves urplus
$ $ $ $ $
631 2,157,443 1,475,000 7,487,991 11,120,985
- - - 48,807 48,097
531 2,157,443 1,475,000 7,536,088 11,168,982
- 1,911,800 - - 1,911,900
- - - (350,208) (350,288)
531 4,089,343 1,475,000 7,186,889 12,731,563

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENT OF CASHFLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 2019 2018
$ $

Cash Flows from Operating Activitios
Grants racelved and operating activities 3 18,473,166 20,203,579
Interest recelved 168,277 155,802
Other racalpts 2,307,164 1,548,808
Payments fo suppliers and employees (20,908,176)  (21,092,001)
Net cash provided by/(ugzad in) Operating Activities 14 40,431 006,188

Cash Flows from Investing Activitles
Payments for proparty, plant and equipment (1,398,185) {198,426)
Proceeds from disposal of plant and equipment 53,808 106,354
Net cash provided by/{used in) Invasting Activities (1,344,279) {125,245)
Nat increape/(decreass) In cash held (1,303,848) 814,116
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 8,281,105 7,466,988
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 14 8,977,257 8,281,105

The accompanying notes form part of these financial statamants.
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEARENDED 30 JUNE 2019
NOTE1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Bagls of preparation

The financial repart covers Victorian Aborigingl Health Servicas Co-cperallve Limlted as an Individual entlty. Victorlan Aboriginal
Henlth Services Co-operative Limited is Incorporated and domicllad in Australia. Its reglstered office and principal place of
business belng 186 Nicholson Street Fltzroy Vic 3085.

The financlal stataments are general purpose financlal statemants that have besn prepared In accordence with Australian
Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements of Australlan Accounting Standards Board (AASB), the Australian
Charltlas and Not-for-profits Commisslon Act 2012 and the Co-operatives National Law Application Act 2013. Tha Co-operative
s & not-for-profit entity for financlal reporting purposes undar Australian Accourting Standards.

Austrafien Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that e AASB has concludad would result in financial stetements
contalning relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and conditions. Material accounting policles adopted in
the preparation of thess financial statements are presented below and have been conglstently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financlal statsments, except for the cash flow information, have heen prepared on an accruals basls and are baged on
historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement st falr valus of seleclad nan-current assets, financial assets
and financial (iabiliies. The amounts presented in the financial statements have basn roundad to the nearest dollar.

{a) IncomeTax

The Co-operative, baing establishad for community sarvices purposes, Is exempt from Income tax. The Co-operative 18 &
charlty reglsterad with the Australlan Charities and Not-for-profits Commission.

(b) Propeity, Plantand Equipmant

Each class of property, plant and equipment Is canied at cost or fair valus as Indicated less, where applicable, any
accumulated depreciation and impalrment losses.

The depreciabla amount of all fixad assets, excluding land, are depreciated elther on the straight line bass or the reducing
balance method over tha useful lives of the assets to the Co-operative commencing from the tima the asset is avallable for

uge.

The dapreciation rates used for each class of dapreclable asset are:

Class of Fixed Asset DepreciationRate
Freshold bulldings ) 2.5% to 15%
Leasshold buildings 2.5% to 16%
Fumiture and equipment 0% to 40%
Motorvehicles 18.76% 0 33 %
Copyright of floor design 5%

The canrying amount of fixed assets ls reviewed annually by directors to ensure it Is not in excess of the racoverabla
amount of those assets. The facovarable amount is assessed on the basis of expected net cash flows which will be
racalved from the assets' employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows have not bean discountad to
thelr present value In detarmining the recoverable amounts.

Galns and losses on disposals are determined by comparing procasds with the carrying amount. These gains or losses are
recogrised In profit or loss In the perlod In which they arise. When revalued assets are sold, amounts included In the
revaluation surplus ralating to that asset are transferred to retained surplus.

{c) Impairment of Assets

At the end of sach reparting period, the Co-opsrative reviews the carrying amounts of its tanglble and Intanglble assats to
determins whether there Is any indication that those assets have bsen impalred. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the seset, being the higher of the asset's falr value less costs to sell and velue in use, is comparad
{o the asset’s carrying amount. Any excess of the asset's carrylng amount over its racoverable amount Is recognised in
profit or loss.

Where the futurs economic benefits of the asast are not primarily dependent upon the assst's ablifty to generate net cash
inflows and when tha Co-operative would, if deprived of the asset, raplaca its remalning future economic benefits, valua in
use 18 determined as the depreciatad replacement cast of an asset.

Where it Is not possible 1o estimale tha racoverable amount of an Individual asset, the Co-operstive estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs,

Where an Impalrment loss on a revalued asset [s Identified, this is recognisad agalnst the revaluation surplus in respect of
the same clags of assat to the extant that the impairment loss daes not exceed the amount in the ravaluation surplus for
that class of asset. .
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51825578859

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 1:

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

{d) Leases

Lease payments for operating leases, where substantially all the risks and benefits remaln with the lessor, are charged as
expenses in the periods In which they are Incusred.

{e) Employea Benefits

Provision is made for the Co-operative's liability for amployea banefits arising from services rendered by employees to the
end of the reporting period. Employee benefits that are axpected to be sattied within one year together with benefils arlsing
fram wages and sslarles and annuat leave which will be sattled after one year, have bean measured st the amounts
expected to be paid when tha liablilty is settled plus related an-costs. Other employea banefits payable later than one year
have been messured at the present value of the esiimated future cash outflows to be made for those bensfits. In
detennining the liablitty, consideration is given to employes wage increases and the probability that the employss may not
satisfy vesting requirements. Those cash outflows are discounted using market ylelds on corporate bonds with terms o
maturity that match the expected timing of cash flows attributabla to employse banefits.

Conlributions are made by the Ca-operalive to & number of superannuation funds chosen by employees and are charged
as an expenss when incurred.

(h Cash

Cash and cash equivalants Include cash on hend, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-tenn highly liquid investments
with original maturities of six months or less, and bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within short-term borrowings in
current liabillties on the statement of financlal position.

(g) GovernmentGrants

Govemment grants for the current year are brought to account as revenus upon recelpt. Any grants which are raciprocal
where a presant obligation exists to repay the grant, are treated as a llabllity in accordance with AASB 1004 Contributions.
Grants recelved In relation o future pariods’ funding ere treated as grants recelvad in advance In the financial statements.

(h) Donntions and Other Revenua

Revenue from donstions is accounted for on a cash recelpts basis. Interest revenue is recogniaad on a proportional basla
taking Into account the applicable Interest rates. Revenue from the diaposal of asaels Is recugnisad et the time of sale of
the ssset. Medlcare revenue is accounted for on a cash recelpts basls. Sundry income I8 recognised at the time it
becomes due and recelvable,

All revenue s stated net of the amount of goods and service tax (GST).

() GoodsandServices Tax(GST)

Revenuss, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST except where the amount of GST Incurred I8 not
recoverabla from the Australian Taxation Office.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amaunt of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST
recoverable from, or payable to, the ATO Is Included with ather receivables or payables in the statement of financlal
posltion.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basls. Tha GST components of cash flows arising from invesling or financing
activitles, which are recoverabls from or payable to the ATO, are presented as opsrating cash flows Included in receipts or
payments to suppllers.
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 850

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

NOTE1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continuad)

]

Financlal Instruments

Initinl recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabllitles are recognised when the entlty becomes a parly to the contractual provisions to the
inatrument. For finencial assets, this is the date that the entity commits itself to aither the purchass or sale of the sssst (ie
trade date accounting I8 adopted).

Trade recelvables are initislly messured at the transaction prica If the trads recaivables do not contain significant financing
component ar If the practical expedient was applied as specified In AASB 156.83,

Cinssification and Subsequent Measurement

Finenclel llabilities
Finangial lsbilitles are subsaquantly measured at amortised cost using the effectiva interest method.

The effective interest method Is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a dabt Instrument and of allocating Interest
oxpense In profit or loss over the relevant period.

The effeciive interest rate Is the Intemal rata of return of the financlal asset or Uabllity. That Is, It Is the rate that exactly
discounte the estimated future cash flows through the expectad life of the Instrument to the net carrylng amount at initial
racognition.

A financlal asset s subsequantly measurad at amartised cost whan it mests the following conditions:

« the financlal asset is managed solely to collact contractus! cash flows; and
« the contractusl terms within the financial asaet give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of princlpal and
interast on the principal amount outstanding on specified dates.

Derecognition

Derecognition réfers to the removal of a previously recognised financlal asset or financlal Habllity from the statement of
financlal position.

Derscognition of financial llabllitles

A llability Is derecognised when it ls extingulshed (le whan the obligation in the contract ls discharged, cancelled or
axplres). An exchange of an existing financlal llabllity for & new one with substantislly modified terms, or a substantial
modification to the terms of a financlal llability, Is trested as an extingulshment of the existing liabllity and recognition of &
new financlal.

Derscognllion of financlal assets
A financlal assset Is deracognisad whan the holder's contractual rights to its cash flows expires, or the asset is transferred In
such a way that all the sks and rewards of ownership are substantially transferred.

All of the following criteria nesd {o be satisfled for derevopnition of financlal asset:

« the right to receive cash flows from tha asset has expirad or been transfarrad;
« all sk and rewards of ownership of the asset have been substantlally transferred; and
« the enilty no longer controls the asset (is It has no practical abllity to mske uniiateral dacislons to sell the assetto a

third party)

On derecognition of a financial asset measurad et amortised cost, the diffarence betwaen tha asset's carrying amount and
the sum of the conslderatlon recalved and recsivable iz recogniaed In profit or logs.

Impairment
The entity recognleas a loas allowance for expected credit losses an:

« financial asssts that are measured at amortisad cost or falr value through other comprehensive incoms;
« lease recsivables;

« contract asssts (eg amount due from customers under construction contracts);

« loan commitments that are not measured at falr value through profit or loss; and

« financial guarantes contracts that are not measured at falr valus through profit or loss

Expatted cradit losses are the probablilty-welghled estimats of credit losses over the expacted life of a financlal instrument. A
cradlt losa Is the diffarance between all contraciual cash flows that are due and all cash flows expacted o be racelved, all

discounted at the origina! effective Imterest rats of the financlal instrument.
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-QPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

The antity used simplified approach to impairment, as applicable under AASB 9:

Simpllfied approach

The elmplifiad approach does not require tracking of changes In credit risk in every raporting perlod, but Instead requires tha
racognition of lifetime expectad credlt loss at &l imes,

This approach is applicable to:
« trade recelvables or contract aesets that result from transactions that are within the scope of AASB 15, that contaln a

slgnificant financing componsnt; and
o lease racelvables.

Recognition of unexpectad credit losses In financlal statements

At each reporting date, the entity recognised the movement In the loss allowance as an Impeitment gain or loss in the
statemnent of profit or Ioss and other comprehenslve Income,

The carrying amount of financlal assets measured at amorised cost Includses the loss allowance relating to that asest.

(kj Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

The Board evaluates the estimates and judgments Incorporated into the financlal statements based on historlcal knowladge
and best avallable currant information. Eetimates assume a reasonable expectation of futurs events and are based on
current tronds and economic data, obtained both extemally and within the Co-operative.

The financial report was authorised for [ssue on 15 Novembar 2018 by the board of directors.
() New and Amendsd Accounting Policles Adopted by the Entily
AASB 9: Flnancial Instruments

Initial Application of AASE 8

The entity has adopted AASB 8: Financial Instruments with a date of Initial application of 1 July 2618. As a result, the entity
has changed its financlal Instruments accounting policies as dstslled In the significant accounting policles note.

Disclosure of Initisl epplication of AASB 9

The date of Initial application was 1 July 2018. The antlty has applled AASB 8 fo instrumaents that have not been
derecognisad as &t 1 July 2018 and has not applied AASB 9 to Instruments that have already been derecognlsed as at 1
July 2018. Comparative amounts in relation to Instruments that have not been derecognised as et 1 July 2018 have besn
rastatsd where appropriate.

Impeirment
As per AASB 9, an expacted credit loss model is applied, not an incurred credit loss model as per the previous standard

applicable (AASB 138),

A simple approach Is followed In ralation to trade recalvables as the loss allowance is measured at lfetime expscied credit
loss.

The entity reviewed and assessed the existing financia! assets on 1 July 2018. The assessment was done to test the
impairment of these financlal assets using reasonable and supportable Information that Is avallable to detenmine the credit
risk of the respective itemns at the date they waere initially recognised. The assessment was compared to the cradit risk &s at
1 July 2017 and 30 June 2018, Tha assessment was done without undue cost or effort In accordance with AASB 8,
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2019 2018
$ $
NOTE 2 REVENUE
Revenus from operating activities - Grants and program revenue
Commonwealth Government departmants, funded agencles and authoritles
Department of Hesith
indigenous Primary Health Care Servicas 4,895,189 4,827,612
Tackiing indigenous Smoking 1,010,043 1,010,043
Commonwealth Home Support Programme 956,877 864,521
Servica Malntenance Program/Continuous Quallty Improvement - 113,806
Dspartment of Human Services
Medicare " 1,282,935 1,358,434
Practice Incentive Programs 245,859 200,343
Department of Social Services 131,387 137,770
Dapartmant of Prime Ministar and Cabinet 237,203 234,716
Grents and program revenua from other Commonwaaith funded agencies snd
authorities
Eastern Melbourne Primary Healthcare Network 340,123 527,137
North Westem Melbouns Primary Healthcare Natwork 1,134,801 1,700,514
Australian General Practice Tralning - 97,676
Gther - 3,401
10,234,427 11,077,162
Victorian Government departmants, funded agsncles and authoritles
Dapartment of Health and Human Services 5,656,930 5,258,740
Department of Education and Training 610,944 608,513
Department of Justice - 525,500
Victorian Responsible Gambling Foundation 512,807 498,207
Dental Health Services Victoria 122,004 119,834
6,902,485 7,010,984
Non-Government program revenue
Youth Support and Advocacy Service ~ Bunjiiwarra 1,177,842 995,466
Royal Australign Collages of Physicians 102,500 101,250
Other Non-Govsrnment program revenus 554,183 322,818
1,834,525 1,419,534
Total Revenue from oparating activitles 18,971,437 19,507,680
Revenue from non-operating activities
Donetlons - (68)
Expense racoveries 12,661 12,654
Interest received 173,278 148,582
Rent 19,498 178,493
Sundry ssles and income 171,519 33,083
Total Revenue from non-operating activitien 377,156 372,768

The analyss of revenus sbove, Including comparatives, reflects changes In the names of govemment deparntmants and other
funding bodies, changes in programs funded and the sources of funding.
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2018 2018
$ $
NOTE3 GRANTS

Grants and pragram revenue recaived during the financial year comprise

Commonwealth Government departments, fundad agenclas and authorities

Depariment of Health

indigenous Primary Heaith Care Services 4,805,189 4,827,612

1,010,043 1,010,043

Tackiing Indigenous Smoking

Commonwealth Home Support Programme 956,877 864,521

Service Maintenance Program/Continuous Quality Improvement - -
Depariment of Human Sarvices

Medicare 1,282,035 1,350,434
Practica Incentive Programs 245,859 200,343
Department of Soclal Services 131,387 137,770
Depariment of Prime Minister and Cablinet 237,203 208,003
Grants and pragram ravenue from other Commenwealth funded apencies and authorities
Eastern Melbourne Primary Hesalthcare Network 264,446 481,347
North Westam Melboumne Primary Healthcare Network 1,007,981 1,682,486
Australian General Practice Tralning - 97,676
Other - 3,491
10,031,830 10,883,736
Victorlan Government departments, funded agencles and authorities
Depsrtment of Health and Human Services 5,352,664 6,193,065
Department of Education and Training 610,944 608,513
Department of Justice . 525,500
Victorian Responsible Gambling Foundation 467,607 543,297
Dantal Health Services Victoria 122,004 118,034
6,563,219 7,980,309
Non-Govarnment program revenue
Youth Support and Advocacy Sarvice ~ Bunjliwama 1,177,842 985,466
Royal Australian Colleges of Physiclans and Medical Adminlstrators 102,600 101,250
Other Non-Government program revanue 607,675 322,818
1,888,017 1,419,634
Total Grants and program revenua received 18,473,166 20,293,579

The analysis of grants and program revenus received above, Inciuding comparativas, reflects changes in the names of
govemment departmants and other funding bodies, changes In programs funded and the sources of funding.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED

ABN 51 825 578 859

NOTE 4 SURPLUS(DEFICIT)

NOTE 5

NOTE 6

Surplus/{deficit) has been determined after:
Charging as expenges / crediting 8s revenue:

Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment
Amortisation of copyright

Total dapreciation and amortisation

Rental expense on oparating leages
Loss/{profit) on dispossl of plant and equipment

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on hand
Cash at bank

Cash |s on hand or available on demand
Non-interest bearing
Intarest bearing

Spocific purpose cash assats

Cash and cash equivalents are held for the following spscific pumposes:
Unexpandad granis and grants recelved in advanca (Note 8(a))

Total spectfic purpose cash and cash equlvalents

Other cash and cagh equivalents

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
Sundry debtors

No Interest ls payable on overdus debtors.
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2019 2018
$ $
482,742 496,881
. 1,000
482,742 497,881
135,055 46,056
(12,861) (8,864)
800 800
8,876,457 8,260,305
8,077,257 8,261,105
800 800
8,676,457 8,280,305
8,877,257 8,281,105
2,900,504 3,425,767
2,800,504 3,425,787
4,076,753 4,855,338
042,870 1,172,012




VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

2019 2018
$ $
NOTE7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Land at Independent valuation (b) 6,000,000 3,200,000
Freehold building at Independent valuation {b) 2,150,000 2,775,000
Less: accumulated depraciation - (400,202)
2,150,000 2,374,708
Leasehold bulldings atindspendent valuation (b) 1,500,000 3,412,815
Leasehold bulldings at cost 1,044,520 -
Less: accumulated depreciation (11,864) (2,115,641)
2,532,858 1,287,274
Fumiture and aquipment at cost 879,087 628,033
Less: accumulated depreciation (476,086) (363,978)
402,981 275,055
Copyright of floor design at cost 20,000 20,000
Less: accumulated amortisation (20,000) (20,000)
Motor vahicles at cost 1,071,121 1,222,110
Less; accumulated depreciation (754,437) (753,114)
318,684 468,986
Total property, plant and equipment 10,402,331 7,616,033
(a) Movaemantin carrylng amounts
2018 Land Freshold Leasehold Furniture&  Copyright of Motor Vahiclas Total
bulldings buildings squipment fioor deslgn
$ $ $ $ $ 3 $

OpsningBalance 3,200,000 2,374,708 1,287,274 275,055 - 468,986 7,616,033
Additions - - 1,079,625 250,054 - 08,305 1,308,184
Depreclation - (82,367) (98,684) (122,118) - (178,203) (481,372)
Disposals - - . - - (42,414) (42,414)
Revaluation 1,800,000  (142,341) 254,241 - “ - 1,811,800
Closing balance 5,000,600 2,150,000 2,532,656 402,991 - 316,684 10,402,331

(b) Assetravaluation
The Board valuations of freshold land and bullding were baesd on indspendent valuations conducted by Julian Vaelmorbida Centified

Practlsing Valuer of Wallace Commerclal (Vic) Py Ltd, The property situatad at 186 Nicholson Strest, Fitzroy, Victoria has been revalued
on 6 Septembar 2019. The propertias situated at 664-666 Smith Street, Clifton Hill, Victorla and 238-250 Plenty Road, Preston, Victorla
have besn revalusd on 28 August 2010,

Refer to Note 18 for detalled disclosures regarding the fair value measurement of the VAHS land and bulldings.
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NOTE 8

VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED

ABN 51 825 578 859 »
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F OR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019
2019 2018

$ $
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Trada creditors 275212 317,806
Accruals 713,514 500,765
GST Payable 208,419 131,872
Unexpended grants and grants recalved In advanca (a) 2,900,504 3,425,767

4,088,649 4,385,300

NOTE 9

(a) Unexpended grents and grants received in advance:

Unexpendad grants ara grants received on or before 30 Juna 2019 for which plans hava been established for utilisation on or
before 30 Juna 2018. Grants racaived In advance ara grants recaived In the year to 30 June 2018 to be used In the year to 30
June 2020.

Commaonwealth Government

Departmeant of Health

Department of Prime Minister and Cabinet 60,000 60,000

Other Commonwealth grants -

Victorian Government

Dapartment of Health and Human Services 2,856,734 2,861,000

North Wast Metropolltan Prmary Heaith Network 77,882 204,502

Eastern Malboume Primary Health Network 78,688 155,266

Victorlan Respons!ble Gambling Foundation N 45,000

Other non-govemancs program revenue 28,500 -

Total unaxpandad grants and grants recelved in advance 2,900,504 3,425,767

PROVISIONS

CURRENT

Provislon for annuel leave 788,237 806,031

Provislon for lang service leave 556,299 593,830
1,344,536 1,399,961

Based on past experience, the assoclation expects the full amount of the annual laave balance to ba settied within the next 12
months. Further, these amounts must ba classified as current ligbllitles since the Co-Operstive does not hava an unconditional
right to defer the setiament of these amounts In the svent employaes wish to use thair laave entitlements

NON-CURRENT

Provision for long service leave 147,718 113,927

A provision has been recognised for smployee antitlements relating to long service laave. In calculating the prasent value of
future cash flows In raspact of long service lsave, the probabliity of long service Isave being taken is based on historlcal data.
The measurement and recognition criteria relating to employes banefits have bean Included in Note 1.

NOTE 10 RESERVES

NOTE 11

Bulldingproject
Tha bullding project reserve of $4,089,343 represents funds for the replacement of buildings and revaluations of land and

buildings.
Caplial Reserve
The capltal resarve of $1,475,000 rapresents the falr value of tha Smith Stree! property acquired at na cost.
AUDITORS' REMUNERATION
Audit fees for auditing the financial statemants 37,201 23,000

Faas for othar consulting services

37,201 23,000
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2019 2018
$ $
NOTE 12 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL COMPENSATION
Salary 713,237 756,671
Superannuation 60,453 64,137
713,680 821,008

NOTE 13 RELATED PARTIES

Directora and key management personnel are involved in othar Aboriginal arganisations and transactlona ooourln the normal

course of businesa on anarm's langth basls,
in additlon Boand directors ara offerad narmal toals of trade such as moblle devices to support them  In delivery of Board
services and these tools of trada are provided in accordance with normal policles and procedures,

NOTE 14 CASHFLOW INFORMATION
(a) Reconcillstlon of Cash

Cash as at the end of the financlal year as shown In the Statement of Cash Flowa Is
reconclled to the relavent items in the Statement of Financial Position as follows

Cash on hand and at bark 6,077,257 8,281,105

(b) Reconciliation of Cash Flow from Operations with surplus/(defich) for the year

Surplus/(defictt) for the year (350,299) 48,997
Non-cash flows In surplus/(deficit):

Depreciation 482,742 497,881

(Profit)loas on sale of asset (12,861) (8,854)

Changes In aseets and Fabilities:

Increase in trade and other recalvables 228,133 {620,742)
Increase in trade and other payablss {286,651) 863,376
Increase in provisions (21,633) 125,630
Net cash provided from operating activities 40,431 906,188

NOTE 15 LEASE COMMITMENTS
Payable - minimum laase payments

Not later than 1 year 166,840 75,263
Later than 1 year but not later than 5 years 604,833 55,802
The office equipmant leases are non-cancellable leases with up to three-year terms, 771,573 131,065

NOTE16 EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No matters or circumstances have arisen since the and of the reporting perlod which significantly affectad or may significantly
affect the oparations of the Co-oparative, the results of those operstions, or the state of affairs of the Co-operative in future
financlalyears.

NOTE 17 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
In respactta the Smith St. Praperty, the Ministar for Aboriginal Affalrs has a mortgage of $400,000 over tha property.
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 859

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2018

NOTE 18

NOTE 19

2019 2018

FAIR VALUE MOVEMENTS

VAHS has the following assets, a6 set out In the table below, that are measured at fair value on & recurring basis aftar Initial
recognition. VAHS does not subsequantly measurs any abilities at fair valua on a recurring basls, or any sssets or flabliities at
fair value on a non-recurring basis.

Non-Financlal Assets

Freehold land 5,000,000 2,880,000
Freehold bulldings 3,650,000 2,685,830
Total nonfinancial assets recognised at falr value 8,650,000 5,565,830

For freshold land, the falr valua has been determined using & market approach using recent observable market data
for similar properties. Significant inputs are price par square metre.

For frashold bullding, the falr value has basn determined using a market approach using recent sbsarvable market
data for elmllar properties. Significant Inputs ara price persquare metre.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The company's financial instrumenta consist melnly of deposils with barks, short-term investments, accounts recelvabla and accounts
payabla. The camying smourts for each category of finandial Instrumanis, measured In accordance with AASE 138 as detalied In the
scoounting policies to thesa financial statements, are as follows:

Financla! Asuets

Cash and cash equivalents 5 6,077,257 8,281,106
Trade and other recelvablas 8 042,879 1,712,012
Total financlal asgets 7,820,136 9,453,117

Financial Liabilitios

Financlal labilities at amortieed cosat:
- Trade and other payables 8 1,198,145 850,633

Total financlal liabllitias 1,188,145 959,533
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VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
ABN 51 825 578 8%8

DIRECTORS'DECLARATION

The directors of the Victorian Aborlginal Health Service Co-operative Limited daclare that:

1. The financial statements and notes, as set out on pages 7 to 21:

(8) comply with Australian Accounting Standards - Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the
Co-Operatives National Law Application Act 2013 and the Australian Charities and

Not-for profits Commission Act 2012; and
(b) give & true and fair view of the financial position as at 30 June 2019 and performance

for the year ended on that date;

2. In the diractors’ opinion there are reasonable grounds to believe that the Co-operative will be able
to pay Its debts as and when they become due and payable.

This declaration is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Diractors.

Chéﬁrperso
Treasurer

-

Dated this 15 day of November, 2019

22




McLean Delmo Bentleys

MclLean Delmo Audit Pty Lid
, , Level 3, 302 Burwood Rd
)Bentleys TR
THNRNSAHEAD PO Box 582 Hawthorn Vic 3122

ABN 54 113 655 584

T +61 39018 4666
F +6139018 4799

info@mcdb.com.au
mcleandelmobentleys.com.au

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the financial report of Victorian Aboriginal Health Service Co-operative Limited,
which comprises the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information, and the directors’ declaration.

In our opinion the financial report of Victorian Aboriginal Health Service Co-operative Limited is in
accordance with the Co-operatives National Law Application Act 2013 and Division 60 of the
Australian Charities and Not-for-profit Commission Act 2012, including:

(a) giving a true and fair view of the Co-operative’s financial position as at 30 June 2019 and of its
performance for the year ended on that date; and

(b) complying with Australian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure Requirements, the Co-
operatives National Law Application Act 2013 and Division 60 of the Australian Charities and Not-
for-profit Commission Regulation 2013

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Report section of our report. We are independent of the Entity in accordance with the ethical
requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s APES 110 Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the financial report in
Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

In conducting our audit, we have complied with the independence requirements of the Australian
Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the Directors for the Financial Report

The Directors of the Entity are responsible for the preparation of the financial report that gives a true
and fair view in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure
Requirements, the Australian Charities and Not-for-profits Commission Act 2012 and the Co-
operatives National Law Application Act 2013 and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial report that gives a true and fair view and is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the directors are responsible for assessing the Entity’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Entity or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

4 A member of Bentleys, an association of independent accounting firms in Australia. The member firms of the Bentleys association are ) Accountants
/%&KRESTON affiliated only and not in partnership. Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standards Legislation. A member of »» Auditors
Kreston International. A global network of independent accounting firms. <
» Advisors
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THINKING AHEAD

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF VICTORIAN ABORIGINAL HEALTH SERVICE CO-OPERATIVE LIMITED
(CONTINUED)

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of the financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Entity’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by Directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Entity’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's
report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Entity to cease to
continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in
a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Martin Fensome Hawthorn
Partner | § November 2019
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